Behaviour & Attitudes

Attendance Policy - November 2025 (revised from September 2025)

	Contents
1.1	Statement of Intent
1.2	Legal Framework
1.3	Roles & Responsibilities
2.1	Definitions
3.1	Attendance Expectations
3.2	Absence Procedures
3.3	Attendance Register
4.1	Authorising Parental Absence Request
4.2	SEND and Health Related Absence
4.3	Pregnant Pupils & Parents Who are School Age
5.1	Missing Pupils
5.2	Attendance Intervention
5.3	Working with Parents to Improve Attendance
5.4	Emotional Based School Avoidance (EBSA)
5.5	Medical Support Panels
6.1	Adjusted Timetables
6.2	Reduced Timetables
6.3	Flexible Timetables
6.4	Flexi-Schooling
6.5	Alternative Provision
6.6	Reasonable Adjustment
6.7	Blended Adapted Timetables
6.8	Bail Conditions
6.9	Dual Placement Dual Placement
7.1	Daily Monitoring Procedures
7.2	Pupil Not Attending Regularly (PNAR)
7.3	Persistent Absence (PA)
7.4	Pupil Not Attending at ALL (PNAA)
7.5	Children Missing in Education (CME)
7.6	Safe and Well Checks
8.1	Elective Home Education (EHE)
8.2	Taking a Pupil Off Roll
8.3	Changing Schools
9.1	Legal Intervention
10.1	Training of Staff
10.2	Attendance Monitoring Procedures
11.0	Review
Appen	dices
1	Attendance Flow Diagram
2	Universal Letter – sent at the start of the academic year
3	Yellow Concern Letter – irregular attendance with no pattern
4	Amber Concern Letter – significant absence
5	Purple Concern Letter – suspected holiday in term-time
6	Blue Concern Letter – medical reason causing repeat absence
7	Early Intervention Attendance Concern
8	Notice to Improve Letter
9	Medical Information Sharing Consent Letter
10	School Attendance Panel Template
11	Specialist Graduated Approach to Improving Attendance
12	Pupil Not Attending at All (PNAA) Referral Form
13	How to refer for Medical Support Panel
14	Safe and Well Check Risk Assessment
15	Letter Regarding Flexible Timetables
16	Letter Regarding Reduced Timetables
17	Letter Regarding Flexi-Schooling
18	Absence Request Form
19	Return to School Conversation
19	Return to School Conversation

1.1 Intent

Greenfields Academy believes that to facilitate teaching and learning, good attendance is essential. Pupils cannot achieve their full potential if they do not regularly attend school.

We understand that barriers to attendance are complex, and that some pupils find it harder than others to attend school; therefore, we will continue to prioritise cultivating a safe and supportive environment at school, as well as strong and trusting relationships with pupils and parents.

We take a whole-school approach to securing good attendance and recognise the impact that our efforts in other areas – such as the curriculum, behaviour standards, bullying, SEND support, pastoral support, and the effective use of resources such as pupil premium – can have on improving pupil attendance.

We are committed to:

- Promoting and modelling high attendance and its benefits.
- Ensuring equality and fairness for all.
- Ensuring this attendance policy is clear and easily understood by staff, pupils and parents.
- Intervening early and working with other agencies to ensure the health and safety of our pupils.
- Building strong relationships with families to overcome barriers to attendance.
- Working collaboratively with other schools in the area, as well as other agencies.
- Ensuring parents follow the framework set in section 7 of the Education Act 1996, which states that the parent of
 every child of compulsory school age shall cause them to receive efficient full-time education suitable to their age,
 ability and aptitude, and to any SEND they may have, either by regular attendance at school or otherwise.
- Ensuring our attendance policy is clear and easily understood by all staff, parents and pupils.
- Regularly monitoring and analysing attendance and absence data to identify pupils or cohorts that require more support.

The school's attendance Champion is **Beth Archer** and can be contacted via <u>beth.archer@greenfields-cit.co.uk</u>. Staff, parents and pupils will be expected to contact the attendance champion or an attendance officer for queries or concerns about attendance.

For attendance queries or concerns, staff, parents and pupils may also contact our attendance officers:

Evie Ragsdale-Lowe: evie.ragsdale-lowe@greenfields-cit.co.uk
Claire Brock: claire.brock@greenfields-cit.co.uk
Emma Coates: emma.coates@greenfields-cit.co.uk
Marie Clarke: marie.clarke@greenfields-cit.co.uk

1.2 Legal Framework

This policy has due regard to all relevant legislation and statutory guidance including, but not limited to, the following:

- Education Act 1996
- Equality Act 2010
- The Education (Pupil Registration) (England) Regulations 2006 (As amended)
- The Children (Performances and Activities) (England) Regulations 2014
- Children and Young Persons Act 1963
- DfE (2024) 'Working together to improve school attendance'
- DfE (2023) 'Keeping children safe in education (KCSIE) 2023'
- DfE (2016) 'Children missing education'
- DfE (2023) 'Providing remote education'
- DfE (2024) 'Summary table of responsibilities for school attendance'

This policy operates in conjunction with the following school policies:

- Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy
- Complaints Procedures Policy
- Behaviour Policy
- SEND Policy
- Supporting Pupils with Medical Conditions Policy
- Home Visit Policy
- Pupils with Additional Health Needs Attendance Policy

1.3 Roles & Responsibilities

The Trust Board, supported by the Local School Board, has overall responsibility for:

- Monitoring the implementation of this policy and all relevant procedures across the school.
- Promoting the importance of good attendance through the school's ethos and policies.
- Arranging attendance training for all relevant staff that is appropriate to their role.
- Working with the ELT and the school's SLT to set goals for attendance and providing support and challenge around delivery against those goals.
- · Regularly reviewing attendance data.
- Sharing effective practice on attendance management and improvement across schools.
- Ensuring that this policy, as written, does not discriminate on any grounds, including, but not limited to, ethnicity/national origin, culture, religion, gender, disability or sexual orientation.
- Handling complaints regarding this policy as outlined in the school's Complaints Procedures Policy.
- Having regard to KCSIE when making arrangements to safeguard and promote the welfare of children.
- Ensuring school staff receive adequate training on attendance

The Headteacher is responsible for:

• The day-to-day implementation and management of this policy and all relevant procedures across the school.

- Appointing a member of the SLT to the attendance officer role.
- Ensuring all parents are aware of the school's attendance expectations and procedures.
- Ensuring that every pupil has access to full-time education and will act as early as possible to address patterns of absence.

Staff are responsible for:

- Following this policy and ensuring pupils do so too.
- Ensuring this policy is implemented fairly and consistently.
- Modelling good attendance behaviour.
- Using their professional judgement and knowledge of individual pupils to inform decisions as to whether any welfare concerns should be escalated.
- Where designated, taking the attendance register at the relevant times during the school day.

The Attendance Champion is responsible for:

- The overall strategic approach to attendance in school.
- Developing a clear vision for improving attendance.
- Monitoring attendance and the impact of interventions.
- Analysing attendance data and identifying areas of intervention and improvement.
- Communicating with pupils and parents about attendance.
- Leading a compassionate approach when listening to parents and pupils regarding barriers to attendance.
- Following up on incidents of persistent poor attendance.
- Enforcing attendance through statutory interventions in cases of persistent poor attendance where other supports have not succeeded.
- Informing the LA of any pupil being deleted from the admission and attendance registers.

Parents are responsible for:

- Providing accurate and up-to-date contact details.
- Providing the school with more than one emergency contact number.
- Updating the school if their details change.
- The attendance of their children at school.
- Promoting good attendance with their children.
- Proactively engaging with any attendance support offered by the school and the LA.
- Notifying the school as soon as possible when their child has to be unexpectedly absent.
- Requesting leave of absence only in exceptional circumstances, and in advance.
- Booking any medical appointments around school where possible.
- Following any family-based support implemented by the school to improve attendance.

2.1 Definitions

The following definitions apply for the purposes of this policy:

Absence:

- Arrival at school after the register has closed
- Not attending the registered school for any reason

Authorised absence:

- An absence for sickness for which the school has granted leave
- Medical or dental appointments which unavoidably fall during school time, for which the school has granted leave
- Religious or cultural observances for which the school has granted leave
- An absence due to a family emergency

Unauthorised absence:

- Parents keeping children off school unnecessarily or without reason
- Truancy before or during the school day
- Absences which have never been properly explained
- Arrival at school after the register has closed
- Absence due to shopping, looking after other children or birthdays
- Absence due to day trips and holidays in term-time which have not been agreed
- Leaving school for no reason during the day

Persistent absence (PA):

Missing 10 percent or more of schooling across the year for any reason

3.1 Attendance Expectations

The school has high expectations for pupils' attendance and punctuality and ensures that these expectations are communicated regularly to parents and pupils. Pupils will be expected to attend school punctually every day they are required to be at school, for the full day.

The school day starts at 8:50am, and pupils will be in their classroom, ready to begin lessons at this time. The morning register will be marked by 9:20am and the afternoon register will be marked by 1:10pm.

Pupils will receive a late mark if they are not in their classroom by this time. Pupils will be encouraged to communicate any concerns related to attendance and absence as soon as possible to the relevant member of staff.

3.2 Absence Procedures

Parents will be required to contact the school office via telephone, email or MCAS before 08:50am on the first day of their child's absence – they will be expected to provide an explanation for the absence and an estimation of how long the absence will last, e.g. one school day.

Where a pupil is absent, and their parent has not contacted the school by the close of the morning register to report the absence, administrative staff will contact the parent by telephone call as soon as is practicable on the first day that they do not attend school.

The school will always follow up any absences to:

- Ascertain the reason for the absence
- Ensure the proper safeguarding action is being taken
- Identify whether the absence is authorised or not
- Identify the correct code to use to enter the data onto the school census system

Where a pupil is absent for more than three school days in a row, or more than 10 school days in one term, the pupil's parent will be expected to provide a signed letter with an explanation for the absence(s).

The school will not request medical evidence in most circumstances where a pupil is absent due to illness; however, the school reserves the right to request supporting evidence where there is genuine and reasonable doubt about the authenticity of the illness or repeat illness/appointments.

If a pupil's attendance drops below 90 percent, the attendance champion will be informed, and a formal meeting will be arranged.

On each occasion that a child returns to school from an absence an attendance officer and trusted adult will complete a return to school conversation with them as share with stakeholder as they see appropriate – see appendix 19.

3.3 Attendance Register

The school uses Bromcom to keep attendance registers to ensure they are as accurate as possible and can be easily analysed and shared with the appropriate authorities.

The school's attendance officers will take the attendance register at the start of each school day and at the start of the afternoon session. This register will record whether pupils are:

- Present
- Absent
- Attending an approved educational visit
- Unable to attend due to exceptional circumstances

The school will use the national attendance codes to ensure attendance and absence are monitored and recorded in a consistent way. The following codes will be used:

- # = planned whole or partial school closure
- / = Present in the morning
- \ = Present in the afternoon
- L = Late arrival before the register has closed
- C = Leave of absence granted by the school for exceptional circumstances
- S = Study leave
- C1 = Leave of absence for participating in a regulated performance or employment abroad
- C2 = Leave of absence for part-time pupils
- E = Suspended or permanently excluded but no alternative provision made
- J1 = Leave of absence for job or education interviews
- I = Illness
- M = Medical or dental appointments
- K = Attending provision arranged by the LA
- R = Religious observance
- B = Off-site education activity
- G = Unauthorised holiday
- = Unauthorised absence
- U = Arrived after registration closed
- N = Reason not yet provided
- X = Not required to be in school as not statutory school age
- T = Traveller absence
- Q = Absent due to a lack of access arrangements
- V = Educational visit or trip
- P = Participating in a supervised sporting activity
- D = Dual registered at another educational establishment
- W = Attending work experience
- Y1 = Absent due to their regular transport not being available
- Y2 = Absent due to travel disruption
- Y3 = Absent due to part of the school premises being closed
- Y4 = Absent due to the school site being closed
- Y5 = Absent due to being in criminal justice detention

- Y6 = Absent due to public health guidance or law
- Y7 = Absent due to any other unavoidable cause
- Z = Pupil not on admission register

When the school has planned in advance to be fully or partially closed, the code '#' will be used for the relevant pupils who are absent. This code will also be used to record year groups who are not due to attend because the school has set different term dates for different years, e.g. induction days.

All amendments made to the attendance register will include the original entry, the amended entry, the reason for the amendment, the date of amendment and the name and role of the person who made the amendment.

4.1 Authorising Parental Absence Request

Parents will be required to request certain types of absence in advance. All requests for absence will be handled by the Headteacher – the decision to grant or refuse the request will be at the sole discretion of the Headteacher, taking the best interests of the pupil and the impact on the pupil's education into account.

The Headteacher's decision is not subject to appeal; however, the school will be sympathetic to requests for absence by parents and will not deny any request without good reason.

Leave of absence

The school will only grant a pupil a leave of absence in exceptional circumstances. In order to have requests for a leave of absence considered, the school will expect parents to contact the headteacher in writing at least two weeks prior to the proposed start date of the leave of absence, providing the reason for the proposed absence and the dates during which the absence would be expected to occur using the form agreed template – Appendix 18.

Any requests for leave during term time will be considered on an individual basis and the pupil's previous attendance record will be taken into account. Where the absence is granted, the Headteacher will determine the length of time that the pupil can be away from school. The school is not likely to grant leaves of absence for the purposes of family holidays.

Requests for leave will not be granted in the following circumstances:

- Immediately before and during statutory assessment periods
- When a pupil's attendance record shows any unauthorised absence
- Where a pupil's authorised absence record is already above 10 percent for any reason

If term-time leave is not granted, taking a pupil out of school will be recorded as an unauthorised absence and may result in sanctions, such as a penalty notice. The school cannot grant leaves of absence retrospectively; therefore, any absences that were not approved by the school in advance will be marked as unauthorised.

Illness and healthcare appointments

Parents will be expected to make medical or dental appointments outside of school hours wherever possible. Where this is not possible, parents will be expected to obtain approval for their child's absence to attend such appointments as far in advance as is practicable. Parents will be responsible for ensuring their child misses only the amount of time necessary to attend the appointment and providing the school with evidence of the appointment.

Performances and Activities, including Paid Work

The school will ensure that all pupils engaging in performances or activities, whether they receive payment or not, which require them to be absent from school, understand that they will be required to obtain a licence from the LA which authorises the school's absence(s).

Additional arrangements will be made by the school for pupils engaging in performances or activities that require them to be absent from school to ensure they do not fall behind in their education. These arrangements will be approved by the LA who will ensure that the arrangements are suitable for the pupil.

The pupil will receive education that, when taken together over the term of the licence, amounts to a minimum of three hours per day that the pupil would be required to attend a school maintained by the LA issuing the licence. This requirement will be met by ensuring a pupil receives an education:

- For not less than six hours a week; and
- During each complete period of four weeks (or if there is a period of less than four weeks, then during that period), for periods of time not less than three hours a day; and
- On days where the pupil would be required to attend school if they were attending a school maintained by the LA; and
- For not more than five hours on any such day.

Where a licence has been granted by the LA and it specifies dates of absence, no further authorisation will be needed from the school. Where an application does not specify dates, and it has been approved by the LA, it is at the discretion of the headteacher to authorise the leave of absence for each day. The headteacher will not authorise any absences which would mean that a pupil's attendance would fall below 96 percent. Where a licence has not been obtained, the Headteacher will not authorise any absence for a performance or activity.

Religious Observance

Parents will be expected to request absence for religious observance at least two weeks advance – using appendix 18.

The school will only accept requests from parents for absence on grounds of religious observance for days that are exclusively set apart for religious observance by the relevant religious body. The school will define this as a day where the pupil's parents would be expected by an established religious body to stay away from their employment to mark the occasion.

The school may seek advice from the religious body in question where there is doubt over the request.

Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Absence

Where a pupil's parent belongs to a community covered by this code and is travelling for occupational purposes, the parent will be expected to request a leave of absence for their child at least two weeks in advance – using appendix 18. Absences will not be granted for pupils from these communities under this code for reasons other than travel for occupational purposes.

4.2 SEND and Health Related Absence

The school recognises that pupils with SEND and/or health conditions, including mental health issues, may face greater barriers to attendance than their peers, and will incorporate robust procedures to support pupils who find attending school difficult.

In line with the SEND Policy and Supporting Pupils with Medical Conditions Policy, the school will ensure that reasonable adjustments are made for disabled pupils to reduce barriers to attendance, in line with EHC plans that have been implemented. The school will secure additional support from external partners to help bolster attendance where appropriate.

There may be occasions where a pupil's condition presents like common illness e.g. a pupil who has a reflux issue may be perceived as being sick and therefore require being home for 48 hours, as per NHS guidance. In these cases, school will work with parents and health professionals to confirm what symptoms are associated with the condition that could be perceived as general illness, and a list of suggested criteria will be agreed for school to use as a guide to decision making about requesting a child be collected by parents. It is down to the judgement of the staff who are present at the time to make the decision as they are best placed to do so. It is important for parents to acknowledge that this will be done in the best interest of the child. If for example a child has a temperature as well as being sick, this would indicate an underlying illness rather than related to their condition.

School should work closely with health professionals to seek first hand advice rather than from parents so that they are following the correct guidance.

See appendix 11 for a specialist graduated approach to supporting pupils with complex reasons for low or no attendance.

4.3 Pregnant Pupils & Parents Who are School Age

As a school, any confirmed child/teenage pregnancy should be treated as a medical condition and school should make reasonable adjustments in relation to uniform, toilet pass, authorised absence for antenatal appointment, reduced timetable (if applicable) etc. Please see the Trust policy for Education and Support for Pregnant pupils and School Age Parents.

5.1 Missing Pupils

Pupils will not be permitted to leave the school premises during the school day unless they have permission from the school. The following procedures will be taken in the event of a pupil going missing whilst at school:

- The member of staff who has noticed the absent pupil will inform the Headteacher immediately
- The office staff will also be informed as they will act as a point of contact for receiving information regarding the search
- A member of staff will stay with the rest of the class, and all other available members of staff will conduct a thorough search of the school premises as directed by the Headteacher
- The following areas will be systematically searched:
 - All classrooms
 - All toilets
 - Changing rooms
 - Intervention Rooms
 - Sports Hall
 - The School Grounds
- Available staff will begin a search of the area immediately outside of the school premises and will take a mobile
 phone with them so they can be contacted.
- If the pupil has not been found after 10 minutes, then the parents of the pupil will be notified
- The school will attempt to contact parents using the emergency contact numbers provided
- If the parents have had no contact from the pupil, and the emergency contacts list has been exhausted, the police will be contacted.
- The absent pupil's teacher will fill in an incident form, describing all circumstances leading up to the pupil going missing
- If the absent pupil has an allocated social worker, is a looked-after child, or has any SEND, then the appropriate
 personnel will be informed
- When the pupil has been located, members of staff will care for and talk to the pupil to ensure they are safe and well
- Parents and any other agencies will be informed immediately when the pupil has been located

The Headteacher will take the appropriate action to ensure that pupils understand they must not leave the premises, and sanctions will be issued if deemed necessary. Appropriate disciplinary procedures will be followed in accordance with the Behaviour Policy.

The Headteacher will carry out a full investigation and will draw a conclusion as to how the incident occurred. A written report will be produced, and policies and procedures will be reviewed in accordance with the outcome where necessary.

5.2 Attendance Intervention

To ensure the school has effective procedures for managing absence, the Attendance Champion, supported by the SLT and Attendance Team, will:

- Establish a range of evidence-based interventions to address barriers to attendance
- Monitor the implementation and quality of escalation procedures and seek robust evidence of the escalation procedures that work.
- Attend or lead school attendance panels (SAP's) in line with escalation procedures.
- Establish robust escalation procedures which will be initiated before absence becomes a problem by:
 - Sending letters to parents
 - School Attendance Panels
 - Personalised Intervention
 - Engaging with LA Attendance Teams

The school will use attendance data, in line with the 'Monitoring and analysing absence' section of this policy, to develop specific strategies to improve attendance where patterns of absence are emerging. These strategies will be developed on a case-by-case basis and will consider the needs of the pupils whom the intervention is designed to target.

The school will develop strategies for ensuring that pupils with health needs or home circumstances that result in additional absences are not unfairly excluded from attendance rewards, e.g. by setting individualised targets.

5.3 Working the Parents to Improve Attendance

The school will work to cultivate strong, respectful relationships with parents and families to ensure their trust and engagement. Open and honest communication will be maintained with pupils and their families about the expectations of school life, attendance and performance so that they understand what to expect and what is expected of them. The school will liaise with other agencies working with pupils and their families to support attendance, e.g. social services.

The school will ensure that there are **two** sets of emergency contact details for each pupil wherever possible to ensure the school has additional options for getting in touch with adults responsible for a pupil where the pupil is absent without notification or authorisation.

The school will ensure that parents are aware of their legal duty to ensure that their child attends school regularly and to facilitate their child's legal right to a full-time education – parents will be made aware that this means their child must attend school every day that it is open, save for in certain circumstances, e.g. sickness or absences that have been authorised by the headteacher in advance. The school will regularly inform parents about their child's levels of attendance, absence and punctuality, and will ensure that parents are aware of the benefits that regular attendance at school can have for their child educationally, socially and developmentally.

The school will update parents regarding the expectations for absence for different illnesses using the update NHS guidance <u>ls my child too ill for school? - NHS (www.nhs.uk)</u>.

If a pattern of absence becomes problematic, the attendance team will work collaboratively with the pupil and their parents to improve attendance by addressing the specific barriers that prevent the pupil from being able to attend school regularly. The school will always take into consideration the sensitivity of some of the reasons for pupil absence and will approach families to offer support rather than immediately reach for punitive approaches.

Where these barriers are related to the pupil's experience in school, e.g. bullying, the Attendance Team will work with the Headteacher and any relevant school staff, e.g. the DSL and SENCO, to address this. Where the barriers are outside of the school's control, e.g. they are related to issues within the pupil's family, the attendance officer will liaise with any relevant external agencies or authorities, e.g. children's social care or the LA, and will encourage parents to access support that they may need.

5.4 Emotional Based School Avoidance (EBSA)

Underpinning Principles

- The EBSA Ladder focuses on facilitating a 'step-change' in how we support children and young people (CYP) with their mental health and wellbeing when that drives school avoidance.
- It is the people in the day to day lives of CYP who can help them the most and the Ladder aims to give them confidence in this.
- The approach aims to broaden the conversation away from thinking that help is the domain of specialist services. These are important, but there is much more that can be done to provide support.
- When extra help is needed to address EBSA (step four) the Ladder aims to take a 'no wrong door' approach so that CYP get the right help at the right time and in a way that is right for them.
- Families, schools and communities are vital in preventing mental health difficulties, but also in helping when CYP struggle most. This is not just about prevention; it is also about intervention including for those of greatest concern.
- The aim of the medical need's consultation (step four) is to bring everyone together across agencies and services to
 focus on the same goal helping CYP in ways that support their mental health and wellbeing so that they can thrive in
 school.

Emotional Based School Avoidance (EBSA) is a term used to describe a child or young person who has severe difficulty in attending school due to emotional factors. This can result in prolonged absences from school.

EBSA can present differently across individuals, but can show as:

- low or intermittent attendance
- · high sensitivity or reactivity
- low mood and anxiety (fear of talking to teachers, fears around academic performance)
- social isolation
- signs of emotional distress that affects their ability to function at school, such as difficulties forming relationships with teachers and peers

developmental differences that fundamentally shape perception and action in ways that cause significant challenges in emotional self-regulation and social functioning (autistic spectrum disorder, ADHD).

5.5 Medical Support Panels

The Local Authority has a medical support panel (MSP) which is a multi-agency panel that considers the needs of pupils to arrive at a decision about how suitable education might be provided Medical needs policy – Lincolnshire County Council

This is in line with the following policy. <u>Arranging education for children who cannot attend school because of health needs</u> (publishing service gov.uk) <u>Arranging education for children who cannot attend school because of health needs</u>

Referrals to medical support panel are submitted by a pupil's school. The medical support panel is evidence based and will consider pupil's needs holistically.

Medical support panel takes place fortnightly during term time and considers the referral paperwork and supporting evidence that has been submitted. The panel consists of representation across attendance, inclusion, mental health, early help and Pilgrim Hospital School.

Pupils who are on Palliative care packages should be supported on a case-by-case basis and the local authority should be involved in discussing with parents the most appropriate provision for the pupil.

6.1 Adjusted Timetables

All pupils of compulsory school age are entitled to a full-time education. In very exceptional circumstances, where it is in a pupil's best interests, there may be a need for an adjustment to their timetable to meet their individual needs.

There are law's that are important to understand and refer to when making a decision about what is in the child's best interest:

- Education Act 1996 (Section 19): Local Authorities must arrange suitable full-time education for children who cannot attend school (unless medical reasons mean full-time is inappropriate)
- For pupils with an **EHCP**, if school cannot meet full-time provision, the LA remains legally responsible for ensuring the child still receives their specified support and education.
- Children and Families Act 2014 (Section 42): The Local Authority and health commissioners have an absolute duty to secure the provision written in the EHCP.
- Equality Act 2010 (Section 20 & Schedule 10): Schools must make reasonable adjustments and plan accessibility.

The Education Act 1996, Section 19 places a duty on Local Authorities to

"Make arrangements for the provision of suitable education at school or otherwise than at school for those children of compulsory school age who, by reason of illness, exclusion from school or otherwise, may not for any period receive suitable education unless such arrangements are made for them."

The key words are "suitable education" and "full-time". The Education act does not define a fixed number of hours — but full-time means equivalent to what is normally provided in school for a child of the same age, ability, and aptitude.

The Department for Education has clarified what full time/suitable education should be:

- Primary-age pupils: typically, 21–23 hours per week
- Secondary-age pupils: typically, 24–25 hours per week

Education should be offered for the whole of the school year, not just part of it.

Only if a child's health/medical evidence shows they cannot cope with full-time education may fewer hours be provided — and this must be reviewed regularly.

6.2 Reduced Timetables

Any reduction must be proportionate, reviewed, and demonstrably in the child's best interests and must only be in place for the shortest time necessary and not be treated as a long-term solution. When a child is placed on a reduced timetable, schools must be clear whether they are reducing only teaching hours or also cutting breaks/lunch (social development time). Both count as part of their entitlement, so reductions still need proper recording, LA agreement (for EHCP pupils), and review.

Formal agreement and record keeping: School should:

- Have a written agreement with parents/carers, signed and dated
- Notify the Local Authority immediately (mandatory for EHCP pupils)
- Keep a central log of all pupils on reduced timetables tracked by SLT/governing body
- Record attendance accurately

Register codes:

- When the pupil is in school use the normal present codes:
 - / = Present (AM)
 - \ = Present (PM)

- Other present codes if in a lesson/activity (e.g. B if educated off-site).
- When the pupil is not in school because of the reduced timetable:
 C2 Code (authorised absence)

Clear reintegration Plan

- A written plan with specific targets, timeframes, and support to return to full-time education
- Explicit review date (every 4 weeks or sooner if needed)
- Plan should show how the child will not miss statutory or EHCP provision (e.g. therapies, interventions)

Safeguarding: School should not agree to a reduced timetable if this puts the child at increased risk of harm. The named DSL (Designated Safeguarding Lead) should track every child on reduced timetable.

Risk assessment should be in place considering:

- Where the child will be when not in school
- Who is supervising them
- Impact on safety, welfare, and development

Communication and consent:

- Parents must agree in writing; verbal agreements are not enough
- Pupil's views should be recorded (where possible) in line with Children and Families Act 2014 (pupil voice)
- School should share the plan with social care, health, or other professionals if they are involved

Monitoring attendance and welfare

- Daily attendance checks should be carried out even if the child is only in part of the day
- Welfare calls/home visits must take place if the child is not in expected provision
- Attendance and safeguarding teams track patterns (e.g. persistent part-time arrangements, repeat cycles)

Senior leadership and Governance oversight

- SLT will regularly review the log of reduced timetables
- Governors/trustees should receive reports on numbers, reasons, and reintegration outcomes of RTT's to prevent misuse of reduced timetables to "off-roll" or manage behaviour informally

6.3 Flexible Timetables

A flexible timetable is a planned, longer-term arrangement where a pupil's education takes place in more than one setting, or in different ways, to meet their needs. Unlike a reduced timetable (short-term, temporary), a flexible timetable can be part of a pupil's reasonable adjustments (Equality Act 2010) or written into an EHCP e.g.

- Splitting the week between mainstream school and a special resource base
- Attending a FE college or alternative provision for part of the week
- Including therapeutic programmes (speech therapy, OT, CAMHS) during school hours
- Blended learning (part in school, part at home/hospital school)

Definition:

A flexible timetable is a short- or medium-term arrangement that allows a pupil to receive a modified pattern of attendance or education, tailored to meet specific educational, medical, behavioural, or emotional needs.

Unlike flexi-schooling, a flexible timetable is initiated by the school, not by parents, and is designed to be a temporary measure with a clear plan for reintegration to full-time education.

Legal Context:

All pupils of compulsory school age are entitled to a full-time education.

A flexible timetable may only be used in exceptional circumstances and must be agreed with parents/carers, recorded formally, and kept under regular review.

The Department for Education and local authority guidance make clear that:

- A flexible timetable should only be used as part of a carefully planned intervention.
- The arrangement must be in the best interests of the pupil.
- It should never be used for a long-term solution to behavioural, attendance, or resource issues.
- The school remains responsible for the pupil's safeguarding, education, and attendance during the period of the arrangement.

Purpose of a Flexible Timetable:

A flexible timetable may be considered when:

- A pupil is reintegrating after a long-term absence or exclusion
- There are medical or mental health needs supported by evidence from health professionals
- A temporary adjustment supports improved attendance, behaviour, or emotional regulation
- Part of a reintegration or support plan following alternative provision
- As part of an Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP) or individual support plan

Approval and Agreement Procedure:

The decision to place a pupil on a flexible timetable rests with the Headteacher.

Parents/carers must be fully informed and provide written consent for the arrangement.

A Flexible Timetable Plan will be drawn up, setting out (see appendix 16 for example letter)

- The reason for the arrangement and desired outcomes
- The specific days/times the pupil will attend school
- The duration of the arrangement (normally no longer than 6–8 weeks)
- The support to be provided by the school and any external agencies

Review dates and reintegration plan.

A copy of the plan must be shared with parents/carers and filed securely on the pupil's record.

Recording and Monitoring Attendance

The pupil remains on the school roll and is recorded as attending part-time under a flexible arrangement.

Attendance should be coded as follows:

- Attending school sessions '/' or '\'.
- Absences outside the agreed arrangement 'O' (unauthorised).
- B (educated off-site, e.g. therapy, AP, college).
- D (dual registered, e.g. split placement).
- C only for genuine short, authorised absences, not to cover flexible provision.

Attendance will be monitored regularly to ensure the arrangement remains appropriate and safe.

The school must notify the local authority of any pupil who is not receiving full-time education for medical, safeguarding, or other reasons.

Safeguarding and Oversight

- The school retains full safeguarding responsibility for all pupils on flexible timetables.
- A designated attendance officer will monitor attendance, progress, and welfare, maintaining contact with the pupil
 and family throughout the arrangement.
- The Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) must be informed of all flexible timetable arrangements and included in reviews.
- The local authority may be consulted or notified, depending on local guidance and duration of the arrangement.

Review and Reintegration

- Flexible timetable arrangements must have clear objectives and a defined timescale
- Reviews will take place at least every 2-4 weeks, with input from parents/carers, staff, and relevant professionals
- Each review will consider the pupil's wellbeing, progress, attendance, and readiness to increase time in school
- The goal of every flexible timetable is full reintegration to regular, full-time attendance as soon as it is reasonably possible

Ending or Extending the Arrangement

A flexible timetable will end when:

- The review concludes the pupil is ready for full-time education
- The arrangement no longer meets the pupil's needs
- Safeguarding or welfare concerns arise.

Any proposal to extend beyond 8 weeks must be reviewed by the Headteacher and may require consultation with the local authority and/or other agencies.

Equality and Inclusion

All flexible timetable arrangements will be considered individually, in line with the school's Equality Policy and statutory duties under the Equality Act 2010. The decision will always prioritise the best interests of the child and ensure fair access to education.

6.4 Flexi-Schooling

Definition:

Flexi-schooling is an arrangement whereby a child, who is registered at this school, receives part of their education at school and part elsewhere, usually at home, under a formal agreement between the parent/carer and the Headteacher. The child remains on the school roll and is not regarded as being electively home educated.

The law:

Under Section 7 of the Education Act 1996, parents are responsible for ensuring that their child receives an efficient full-time education suitable to their age, ability, aptitude, and any special educational needs they may have — either by regular attendance at school or otherwise.

Flexi-schooling is not an automatic entitlement. Approval is granted entirely at the discretion of the Headteacher, who must be satisfied that the proposed arrangement will not adversely affect the child's education, welfare, or the effective functioning of the school.

Request and Agreement Procedure:

Parents/carers wishing to pursue flexi-schooling must make a written request to the Headteacher, outlining:

- The reasons for the request
- The proposed pattern of attendance
- The educational provision to be delivered at home

The Headteacher will consider the request in consultation with relevant staff and, where appropriate, the governing body. (See Appendix 17 for example response letter)

If approved, a Flexi-Schooling Agreement will be drawn up, signed by the parent/carer and headteacher, setting out:

- The agreed days of attendance at school and at home
- Roles and responsibilities of both parties
- Arrangements for curriculum continuity, safeguarding, and communication
- Review dates and procedures for amendment or termination

Recording and Monitoring Attendance

Pupils on a flexi-schooling arrangement remain registered at the school and are included in census returns.

Attendance will be recorded as follows:

- Present at school marked as present ('/' or '\').
- Approved flexi-schooling (education elsewhere with prior agreement) recorded as authorised absence ('C').
- Absence without prior agreement or notification recorded as unauthorised ('O').

Attendance will be monitored in line with the school's standard attendance procedures, and patterns of absence will be reviewed regularly.

Safeguarding and Communication

- Parents/carers are responsible for ensuring the child's safety, supervision, and wellbeing during home-based education days.
- Any safeguarding concerns arising at home must be reported immediately to the school.
- The school will maintain regular communication with parents/carers to ensure continuity of learning and oversight of welfare.
- Parents must notify the school promptly if a child is unable to attend on an agreed school day due to illness or other reasons.

Curriculum and Assessment

- The school retains responsibility for the pupil's overall educational provision, progress, and achievement.
- Parents/carers are encouraged to complement, rather than duplicate, the curriculum delivered at school.
- The child's progress will continue to be assessed through the school's standard assessment and reporting procedures.
- For secondary pupils, the school will make clear any implications of flexi-schooling for GCSE, vocational, or other accredited courses.

Review and Continuation

- Flexi-schooling arrangements will be reviewed at least once per term, considering the child's academic progress, attendance, wellbeing, and the effectiveness of communication between home and school.
- The Headteacher reserves the right to amend or withdraw the arrangement if it is deemed not to be in the best interests of the child or the school community.

Withdrawal or Termination of Agreement

- Either party may request a review or withdrawal of the flexi-schooling arrangement, normally with two weeks' notice.
- The Headteacher may withdraw the agreement immediately where safeguarding, attendance, or welfare concerns arise, or where the terms of the agreement are not being met.

Equality and Inclusion

All requests for flexi-schooling will be considered on an individual basis, in line with the school's Equality Policy and statutory duties. No pupil will be discriminated against on the grounds of background, ability, special educational need, or protected characteristic.

6.5 Alternative Provision

If a pupil cannot access full-time school due to health or complex needs, the LA must arrange suitable alternative education (Education Act 1996, s.19) e.g.

- Hosting dual placements (mainstream + special school or AP)
- Using hospital schools, home tuition, or blended provision
- Ensuring EHCP provision continues across all settings

6.6 Reasonable Adjustments

Schools have a duty to remove barriers and ensure disabled pupils are not placed at a substantial disadvantage. This doesn't change the EHCP but allows flexibility in how provision is delivered. This should be a written agreement between the Headteacher and parent/carer in response to removing specific barriers.

- Adjusting the school day structure (e.g. phased starts, rest breaks)
- Offering a flexible timetable (e.g. part-time mainstream + therapy sessions)

If a pupil's needs change or the current provision isn't workable, the Local Authority must review and amend the EHCP (Children and Families Act 2014, s.44). School should call and interim or annual review and provide evidence of why the EHCP needs adapting (medical, therapeutic, SEMH, physical needs). Once amended, the new EHCP legally secures the adjusted provision.

6.7 Blended Adapted Timetables

In some cases, a pupil may have a combination of provision e.g. Accessing an alternative provision 1 day a week (Flexible timetable arrangement), accessing a therapy one after a week (Flexible timetable), in school for 1 and a half days and at home for 2 days a week (Reduced timetable). In these circumstances, it is important to have a robust written explanation as to what function each aspect of the timetable provides the pupil. This should be reported to the local authority and reviewed regularly.

6.8 Bail Conditions

In the event that a pupil has bail conditions, school will need to contact the police and SEND to confirm the reason for the bail conditions and any specific conditions that school need to consider.

It is important that staff do not /share any personal judgements of the case and staff should be reminded that an allegation does not mean that the pupil is guilty unless the police have made a conviction.

In the event that bail conditions relate to another pupil in school or relate to allegations against minors (including of a sexual nature), school will be expected to risk assess the impact of the pupil accessing school as well as the ability to safeguard all pupils within the setting.

Leaders need to consider if the pupil is able to be provided with full time adult supervision on site. In the event that it would not be in the pupil's best interest (e.g. as a result of being targeted by other pupils or if the mitigation would result in the pupil being socially isolated) the Headteacher must contact the SEND caseworker and work together to find alternative provision so that the pupil still receives the entitlement of full-time education.

Whilst school establishes an appropriate off-site provision the pupil should be coded on the register as Y7 (Unable to attend because of any other unavoidable cause) in line with paragraph 392 of working together to improve school attendance. The Headteacher must contact the pupil's parents/carers to discuss options and confirm in writing what decision has been made. Any decision should be reviewed regularly in line with information provided by police and/or other agencies.

6.9 Dual Placement

dual placement occurs when a pupil is enrolled at two education providers simultaneously, typically to meet complex educational, social, or health needs.

Both schools/settings must record the pupil correctly using the statutory DfE codes:

- D = dual registration
- B = educated off-site (if part of the timetable is delivered elsewhere)

Mental Health Act 1983 / 2007

If a pupil is detained under the Mental Health Act (e.g., in a hospital school):

- The hospital or specialist education provider becomes responsible for delivering suitable education, in line with Section 19 duty.
- Dual placement is possible with the home school or special school if the LA and responsible clinician agree.
- Education must continue to meet statutory hours (full-time equivalent) and, if applicable, EHCP outcomes.

Risk assessments and safeguarding procedures must account for vulnerabilities associated with mental health detention.

7.1 Daily Monitoring Procedures

Greenfields Academy has adopted the following attendance monitoring procedures, to ensure that pupils' attendance meets the expected standard, and effective intervention is provided where pupils' attendance falls below the standard:

- 1. A spreadsheet is sent to the SLT and attendance officer detailing weekly and annual attendance to date.
- 2. Contact is made with parents on the first day of absence for any pupil absence not reported. 'N' codes are used to indicate that the pupil is absent for a reason not yet provided; these N codes are reported to the SLT and attendance team daily.
- 3. If there is no contact with parents/carers a dynamic risk assessment will be put in place to determine if a home visit is necessary or if other professionals such as social workers or early help workers need to be informed. This will be recorded on CPOM's with any follow up actions.
- 4. Contact is made to the parents of any pupils marked using the N code. Any N codes not established after a week are recorded as an unauthorised absence.

See Appendix 1 below which shows the procedure for pupil absence. (At any point within the process, if there is a concern that a child may be at risk of harm then the safeguarding team must be informed to follow up on any necessary next steps).

7.2 Pupil Not Attending Regularly (PNAR)

The Education (Pupil Registration) (England) Regulations 2006 Section 12 requires schools to inform the local authority of any pupils who have 10 or more consecutive school days absence without the school's permission.

The current agreed criteria are to provide:

• The name and address of any pupil who has missed school for 10 days or more without the absence being recorded as authorised.

Schools are also under a safeguarding duty, under section 175 of the Education Act 2002 to investigate any unexplained absences.

Lincolnshire Schools can use the link https://www.lincolnshire.gov.uk/school-attendance/pupil-attendance/3 to report a pupil not attending regularly (PNAR).

7.3 Persistent Absence (PA)

There are various groups of pupils who may be vulnerable to high absence and PA, such as:

- Children in need
- CiC
- Young carers
- Pupils who are eligible for FSM
- Pupils with EAL
- Pupils with SEND
- Pupils who have faced bullying and/or discrimination

 $\label{thm:condition} The school will use several methods to help support pupils at risk of PA to attend school. These include:$

Offering catch-up support to build confidence and bridge gaps

- Meeting with pupils to discuss patterns of absence, barriers to attendance, and any other problems they may be having (School Attendance Panels (SAPs)
- Establishing plans to remove barriers and provide additional support
- Leading weekly check-ins to review progress and the impact of support
- Making regular contact with families to discuss progress
- Considering what support for re-engagement might be needed, including for vulnerable groups

Where a pupil at risk of PA is also at increased risk of harm, the school will work in conjunction with all relevant authorities, e.g. social services, to support the pupil in line with the school's duty of care. The school will also bear in mind that the continuation of severe PA following intervention may constitute neglect and will escalate any concerns in this regard in line with the Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy.

7.4 Pupil Not Attending At All (PNAA)

Where a pupil is not attending at all and parents/carers are not working with school to address this, school will complete a trust referral form – Appendix 12.

The priority is ensuring that the pupil is safe and well and has been physically seen by a professional/school regularly. If this is not possible due to enhanced risk identified in a home risk assessment – appendix 14, then school should professionally escalate the case to ensure the pupil is safe and well.

7.5 Children Missing in Education (CME)

County Councils have a duty under Section 436A of the Education Act 1996 to establish the identities of children who are missing from education (CME). Schools also have a statutory duty to inform the Local Authority of pupils who join or leave their roll, as well as pupils who may be missing from education, within prescribed time limits. This duty is set out in the *Children Missing Education: statutory guidance for local authorities and schools* (DfE, September 2025), *Working Together to Improve School Attendance* (2024), and *Keeping Children Safe in Education* (2025).

Definition of Children Missing Education

Children missing education are of compulsory school age and are not registered pupils at a school and are not receiving suitable education otherwise. These children may:

- Not be registered at a school
- Have families whose whereabouts are unknown
- Not be attending or receiving an alternative education provision
- No longer habitually and ordinarily reside at their MIS-registered address
- Children in temporary accommodation
- Children awaiting school placements
- Children receiving unsuitable elective home education (EHE)

Children are not classed as CME if they are:

- Registered as Elective Home Educated (EHE)
- On the roll of a school or provision and their whereabouts are known (though not attending).
- On holiday
- Absent due to illness (including long-term)
- Temporarily absent from home with an indication they will return

Safeguarding and CME

- Being missing from education places children at significant risk of underachievement, harm, exploitation, or radicalisation, and increases the likelihood of becoming NEET (Not in Education, Employment or Training).
- While absence or CME status does not automatically indicate risk, it is a safeguarding concern and must be considered alongside other indicators.
- Where there is concern for a child's welfare, schools must follow safeguarding procedures, making a referral to the Local Authority and, where there is reason to suspect a crime, involving the police.
- Effective information sharing between schools, parents, and the Local Authority is critical in ensuring all children are safe and receiving suitable education.

School Responsibilities

- Maintain and monitor daily registers in line with the School Attendance (Pupil Registration) (England) Regulations 2024.
- Notify the Local Authority promptly where pupils join, leave, or are suspected to be CME.
- Where it is believed that a pupil has left the area and reasonable enquiries fail to establish their whereabouts, complete a Common Transfer File (CTF) and upload it to the DfE National Missing Pupils Database.
- Complete a return interview form and submit it to the Local Authority if/when a pupil is confirmed to have been missing.
- Ensure secure information sharing with the Local Authority in compliance with data protection legislation (GDPR 2018).
- Share data with local authorities and other agencies, using national databases like GIAP and S2S

Reasonable Enquiries

Where a pupil is absent without explanation, the school must make **reasonable enquiries** to establish the child's whereabouts and confirm their safety. These may include:

1. Initial Steps

- Look at the most recent attendance records.
- Review registration forms, emergency contacts, and previous correspondence.

2. Contact the family:

- Phone calls, emails, letters to home or last known address
- Ask for any updates on the child's location or circumstances
- Check siblings or other family members:

Use information already held on siblings at the school

3. Internal Checks and Enquiries

- Speak to teachers, pastoral staff, or other staff who might have recent knowledge of the pupil
- Check school systems, including school transport records, lunchtime registers, and club attendance

4. External Checks

- Contact other local schools to check if the pupil is enrolled elsewhere (if applicable)
- Use School2School (S2S) transfer system or the GIAP database
- Social services (if the child is known to social care)
- Health services, housing teams, or other multi-agency partners

5. Elective Home Education (EHE) checks:

• Ensure the child hasn't been formally deregistered for EHE.

Escalation Steps: If the child remains unlocated after reasonable attempts:

- Inform the LA immediately using CME referral process
- Consider safeguarding escalation if there is concern for the child's welfare
- Police referral may be appropriate if there are risks of exploitation or harm

Documentation: Keep a chronological record of all enquiries including:

- Date, method, outcome of each contact
- Any actions taken or referrals made

This record is evidence of compliance with statutory guidance.

County	Contact email
Lincolnshire	CME@lincolnshire.gov.uk.
Nottinghamshire	https://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/information-for-residents/education-and-
	schools/education-welfare/children-missing-from-education/
Leicestershire	https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/education-and-children/child-protection-and-
	safeguarding/pupils-missing-out-on-education-and-children-missing-from-education

7.6 Safe and Well Checks

School should confirm:

- That the child is physically safe and accounted for
- The reason for absence
- Any emerging safeguarding concerns (e.g., neglect, domestic abuse, exploitation)
- Whether additional referrals or support are required

If a safe and well check cannot be carried out.

As a school, we have a duty to safeguarding all children and young people. We also have a duty to protect our staff. The following are agreed reasons when we would not complete safe and well checks:

- Safety/Safeguarding:
- If carrying out a home visit would place staff at risk (e.g. history of violence at the address, known dangerous animals, or community safety issues).
- If there are serious safeguarding concerns that could escalate risk to the child (e.g. suspected domestic abuse, forced marriage, trafficking). In these cases, the referral should go directly to Children's Social Care or the police.
- Schools are not statutory enforcement agencies they cannot force entry into a home or demand to see a child. If access is refused, escalation to the Local Authority or police is required.
- Capacity & Legal / Procedural Boundaries:
- If the school has made reasonable enquiries (calls, texts, contacts with emergency numbers, checks with transport/siblings) and cannot establish the child's whereabouts, the legal responsibility passes to the Local Authority CME team under Education Act 1996 s.436A.
- Schools are not expected to pursue extensive tracking of families who may have moved outside their jurisdiction this lies with the Local Authority.
- Where there are court orders, safeguarding restrictions, or no-contact directions that mean the school must not approach the home directly.
- Practical / geographic limitations:
- If the child's address is unknown or inaccurate (e.g. family moved suddenly, provided false information).
- If the family has relocated outside the Local Authority's area in these cases, the CME notification process (CTF upload + referral to LA) must be followed including a home visit to the original home.

What schools must do instead:

- Record all reasonable enquiries already attempted
- Escalate immediately to the Local Authority CME team and, where safeguarding is suspected, to Children's Social Care and/or the police
- Document the rationale for not conducting a safe and well check to ensure transparency and compliance (see Appendix 14)

8.1 Elective Home Education (EHE)

All schools are required to notify their Local Authority when a parent wishes to remove a child from their register, to elect to Home Educate.

We will request a meeting with parents to fully discuss their decision to withdraw, and on contacting our department a member of our team may attend the meeting, if appropriate. The aim of this meeting is for parents to share any concerns they may have

but also an opportunity for school to share all relevant information about EHE, including duties and responsibilities of the parent, to support parents in making a fully informed decision.

8.2 Taking a Pupil Off Roll

There are strict legal requirements governing when a pupil's name can be removed from a school roll. Removal from the admission register in any circumstances other than those set out in the Education (Pupil Registration) (England) Regulations 2006 is unlawful.

In addition, as all pupils within our special schools have EHCP, it is important to note there is additional legislation that needs to be considered including Children and Families Act 2014, Section 42 (duty to secure EHCP provision).

A school cannot remove a pupil with an EHCP from roll unless the local authority has agreed to amend or cease the plan or has made alternative arrangements for education.

Even if a pupil is not attending (e.g. on a reduced timetable or medically unfit), they remain on roll until the LA formally authorises otherwise.

A pupil may only be removed from the admission register in one of the prescribed circumstances below:

- > The school is notified by the local authority that the pupil has been registered at another school.
- > The pupil has ceased to attend, and the parent has informed the school that they are providing education otherwise than at school (for example, home education), and the local authority has confirmed this is suitable.
- The pupil has ceased to attend school due to medical reasons, and a medical certificate or statement indicates they are unlikely to return before ceasing to be of compulsory school age.
- The Headteacher has been notified that the pupil has died.
- > The pupil no longer ordinarily resides within a reasonable distance of the school and has ceased to attend.
- > The pupil has not returned within ten school days of the agreed return date following an unauthorised term-time holiday and both the school and local authority have made reasonable enquiries to locate them.
- > The pupil will cease to be of compulsory school age before the next school meeting and has confirmed they will not continue in education.
- > The pupil has been permanently excluded, and the decision has been upheld by the governing board (or independent review panel, if applicable).

The school must continue to record attendance accurately and work with the LA to ensure provision is being made. All schools must notify their local authority when they are about to remove a pupil's name from the school admission register and follow their guidelines. This duty does not apply when a pupil's name is removed from the admission register at standard transition points, when the pupil has completed the final year of education normally provided by that school, unless the local authority requests that such returns are to be made.

When removing a pupil's name, the notification to the local authority must include:

- (a) the full name of the pupil
- (b) the full name and address of any parent with whom the pupil normally resides,
- (c) at least one telephone number of the parent,
- (d) the pupil's future address and destination school, if applicable, and
- (e) the ground in regulation 8 under which the pupil's name is to be removed from the admission register

Schools must make reasonable enquiries to establish the whereabouts of the child jointly with the local authority, before deleting the pupil's name from the register.

The guidance on working together to improve school attendance and the guidance on children missing education says that schools can remove a pupil from the admissions register once they have had a certain number of days' absence, and if the school and the LA have failed to be established that pupil's whereabouts after making reasonable enquiries. The guidance also enables removal from the register if the pupil has been located but "there are no reasonable grounds to believe that they will attend the school again.

The DfE has included some guidance about what would amount to 'reasonable enquiries. Local authorities and schools are expected to agree roles and responsibilities in relation to making enquiries, which might include:

- a. contact the parent, relatives and neighbours using known contact details.
- b. check local databases within the local authority.
- c. check Key to Success or school2school (s2s) systems.
- d. follow local information sharing arrangements and where possible make enquiries via other local databases and agencies e.g. those of housing providers, school admissions, health services, police, refuge, Youth Justice Services, children's social care, and HMRC.
- e. check with UK Visas and Immigration (UKVI) and/or the Border Force.
- f. check with agencies known to be involved with family.
- g. check with local authority and school from which child moved originally, if known.
- h. check with any local authority and school to which a child may have moved.
- i. check with the local authority where the child lives, if different from where the school is.
- j. in the case of children of Service Personnel, check with the Ministry of Defence (MoD) Children's Education Advisory Service (CEAS).
- k. home visit(s) made by appropriate team, following local guidance concerning risk assessment and if appropriate make enquiries with neighbour(s) and relatives.

Schools and local authorities are expected only to make reasonable enquiries, and so this will not necessarily mean exhausting all of the examples listed above. Schools and local authorities should use their judgment as to which approach(es) are appropriate, considering all of the facts of the case.

Please note the important caveat that neither of these grounds for deletion would apply if there are reasonable grounds to believe that the pupil is unable to attend because of sickness or unavoidable cause. In the case of pupils with EHCPs, it is important to consider whether their absence is connected to illness or another unavoidable cause – in which case it would not be permitted to remove them from roll.

Paragraph 249 of the working together to improve school attendance guidance states:

"This ground cannot be used in any case where the pupil could reasonably be supported to return to school regardless of whether that support has been provided. It cannot be used where a pupil is absent because of a health reason. It also cannot be used in cases where attendance legal action to cause the pupil to return to school could reasonably be taken instead. In such cases, the appropriate support or enforcement should be taken rather than the pupil's name being deleted from roll."

In short, this means that, if there are any other ways of getting a child to attend, those options should be considered first.

8.3 Changing Schools

Where a parent of a pupil notifies the school that the pupil is registered at another school or will be attending a different school in future, schools must record in the admission.

Where a parent notifies a school that a pupil will live at another address, all schools are required to record in the admission register:

- a. the full name of the parent with whom the pupil will live.
- b. the new address; and
- c. the date from when it is expected the pupil will live at this address.

Where a school notifies a local authority that a pupil's name is to be removed from the admission register, the school must provide the local authority with:

- a. the full name of the pupil.
- b. the full name and address of any parent with whom the pupil lives.
- c. at least one telephone number of the parent with whom the pupil lives.
- d. the full name and address of the parent who the pupil is going to live with, and the date the pupil is expected to start living there, if applicable.
- e. the name of pupil's destination school and the pupil's expected start date there, if applicable; and

In line with the duty under section 10 of the Children Act 2004, the expectation is that the school and the local authority will have in place procedures designed to carry out reasonable enquiries.

If there is evidence to suggest the child has moved to a different local authority area, contact should be made with the named person in the new authority using secure communication methods. The local authority should maintain a record of the child's details until they are located or attain school leaving age.

All safeguarding files should be securely transferred to the new school in a timely manner.

9.1 Legal Intervention

The school will allow sufficient time for attendance interventions and engagement strategies to improve pupils' attendance; however, where engagement strategies to improve attendance have not had the desired effect after one term, the attendance officer will consider:

- Holding a formal meeting (School Attendance Panel SAP) with parents and the school's point of contact in the School Attendance Support Team
- Working with the LA to put a parenting contract or an education supervision order in place.
- Engaging children's social care where there are safeguarding concerns

Where the above measures are not effective, the Headteacher will issue a fixed penalty notice in line with the LA's code of conduct.

Where attendance still does not improve following a fixed penalty notice, the school will work with the LA to take forward attendance prosecution as a last resort.

Education Supervision Orders (ESOs)

Where interventions have not been successful, an ESO can be an alternative to provide formal legal intervention without criminal prosecution. ESOs are made through the Family or High Court and give the LA a formal role in supporting the pupil and parents to improve their attendance. LAs will issue parents with a notice of the intention to consider an ESO, set up a meeting to discuss with the parent and pupil, and decide whether the case will be taken forward.

Once an ESO is secured, a supervisor from the local authority will decide any actions or requirements. These may include:

- Requiring the parents to attend support meetings.
- Requiring the parents to attend a parenting programme.
- Requiring the parents to access support services.
- Requiring an assessment by an educational psychologist.
- Review meetings involving all parties to be help every 3 months.

Failing to comply with an ESO will result in a fine and decisions will be made about whether further action is required.

10.1 Training of Staff

The school will recognise that early intervention can prevent poor attendance. As such, staff will receive training in identifying potentially at-risk pupils as part of their induction and refresher training.

The governing board will ensure that teachers and support staff receive training in line with this policy as part of their induction. Following this initial training, staff will receive regular and ongoing training as part of their development.

Training will cover at least the following:

- The importance of good attendance
- That absence is almost invariably a result of wider circumstances
- The legal requirements on schools, e.g. the keeping of registers
- The school's strategies and procedures for monitoring and improving attendance
- The school's procedures for multi-agency working to provide intensive support for pupils who need it

The governing board will provide dedicated and enhanced attendance training to the Attendance Champion and other staff with specific attendance functions in their role – this will include training regarding interpreting and analysing attendance data and supporting pupils to overcome barriers to attendance.

Staff will receive training to ensure they understand that increased absence from school could indicate a safeguarding concern and know how such concerns should be managed.

10.2 Attendance Monitoring Procedures

The Attendance Champion will monitor and analyse attendance data regularly to ensure that intervention is delivered quickly to address habitual absence at the first signs.

The school will collect data regarding punctuality, truancy, and authorised and unauthorised absence, for:

- The school cohort
- Individual year groups
- Individual pupils
- Demographic groups, e.g. pupils from different ethnic groups or economic backgrounds
- Other groups of pupils, e.g. LAC and pupils eligible for FSM
- Pupils at risk of PA

The Attendance Champion will conduct a thorough analysis of the above data on a half-termly, termly and full-year basis to identify patterns and trends. This will include identifying, for each group:

- Patterns in uses of certain codes
- Particular days of poor attendance
- Historic trends of attendance and absence
- Barriers to attendance

The Attendance Champion will provide regular reports to staff across the school to enable them to track the attendance of pupils and to implement attendance procedures. The Attendance Champion will also be responsible for monitoring how attendance data changes in response to any interventions implemented to increase attendance in future.

The governing board will regularly review attendance data, including examinations of recent and historic trends, and will support the SLT in setting goals and prioritising areas of focus for attendance support based on this data.

The school will also benchmark its attendance data against local-, regional- and national-level data to identify areas of success and areas for improvement and will share practice which has been shown to be effective with other schools.

11.0 Review

Written: September 2024 Last Reviewed: November 2025 Next Review: October 2026

APPENDIX 1: ATTENDANCE FLOW DIAGRAM

Universal offer:

- Beginning of year attendance letter to all. Reminded in newsletters with reference to LCC FPN system.
- Monthly and termly meetings with teachers contacting at early stage to raise any concerns regarding attendance.

Missing in education normally within 5 school days or sooner depending on previous history (if unauthorised and unmodified absence

10 consecutive unauthorised absence - complete pupil not attending regularly survey.



Stage 1a: Colour coded letter should be sent home with a copy of the pupil's attendance report for any pupil who has dropped

below 95%, and school have concerns.

Stage 2a: In school support (identified patterns or below 90% unauthorised attendance)

- Home visits
- Intervention
- Seek written evidence from GP if absence relates to

Stage 3a: If there is no improvement then a School Attendance Panel (SAP) meeting will be organised with parents/carers and any other related professionals to agree improving attendance plan.



Stage 3: Warning letter Fixed Penalty Notice



Stage 4: Fixed Penalty Notice letter issues (3 weeks from warning letter, if no improvement)



Stage 5: Legal warning letter (4 weeks from stage 4 action) if FPN remains unpaid and/or attendance remains poor.



Stage 6: Legal letter (2 weeks from stage 7 warning letter) and application for prosecution

Stage 1b. If the absence is less than 50% then school should immediately move to stage 3.

Stage 2b: Where there is a specific medical condition that prevents a pupil attending school for more than a week e.g., recovering from surgery, a home learning agreement will be agreed, and work provided including remote learning if needed.

Stage 2a If a GP letter confirms that absence relates to anxiety this will be coded accordingly then the EBSA process will be instigated.

At this point a flexible timetable can be agreed in specific cases.

Stage 1 — 3 should be completed on a case-by-case completed from the point of concern within one full term basis however usually would be

APPENDIX 2: UNIVERSAL LETTER BEGINNING OF YEAR

Dear parents/carers,

RE: SCHOOL ATTENDANCE

I am writing to all parents and carers to remind you of the importance of regular school attendance which is a priority for your child and our school. There is a very strong link between regular school attendance and achievement and if your child is frequently absent from school the chances of them achieving their potential are much lower.

To improve attendance, we have to work together. If something is stopping your child coming to school, please come and talk to us about it, we are here to help.

Our school attendance team meet regularly to discuss ways of improving attendance and achievement. We look at the attendance of every pupil in our school. We review each child's attendance every three weeks. If we have concerns regarding your child's absence, we will follow the procedure below:

If your child's attendance drops to 91-95% the class teacher may contact home to discuss any concerns.

If attendance, then drops below **90**% a colour coded letter will be sent to you depending on the perceived reason:

- Irregular attendance with no pattern
- Significant absence which could be a block absence and/or irregular absence.
- Suspected/confirmed holiday during term time.
- > Significant absence due to an identified medical need.
- Persistent absence that is not due to an identified medical need.

If attendance doesn't improve then you will be invited to a school attendance meeting.

We work closely with the Local Authority and the Trust to follow their attendance guidance and procedures. Lincolnshire County Council do have a policy of fining parents for repeat student non-attendance and unauthorised absence, even at first offence.

We understand that our students have complex needs, and for some health issues and ill-health are unavoidable. When students are ill or unwell it is essential, we know where they are if they do not arrive at school. Therefore, we require a phone-call to school by 08:50am on the first day of the absence to inform us of the reason. You can do this by ringing the school or using MCAS for absence and leave a message stating the reason for absence. You can ring anytime, even if the school phone line says we are closed.

Please inform school of medical appointments ahead of time wherever possible. We will ask for copies of appointment letters for our records.

Our full attendance policy is on the school's website should you need further guidance. If you have any questions regarding this, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely

XXX

APPENDIX 3: Yellow concern letter – irregular attendance with no pattern

Dear (PARENT/CARER NAME)

RE: YELLOW ATTENDANCE CONCERN: (PUPIL NAME)

In line with our attendance policy, I am writing to inform you that your child's attendance has become a concern. We aim for pupil's attendance to be above 95%. If a pupils attendance drops below 90%, we work together to find solutions to improve attendance. Your child's current attendance is XXX%. This means that they have missed XXX days out of a possible XXX.

We carry out regular attendance meetings to identify if any support or intervention is needed. We look at pupil's patterns of absence to assess if there is a concern and use the following colour code to provide the right support and response:

- Irregular attendance with no pattern.
- > Significant absence which could be a block absence and/or irregular absence.
- Suspected/confirmed holiday during term time.
- > Significant absence due to an identified medical need.
- Persistent absence that is not due to an identified medical need.

We have coded your child as a YELLOW concern. If there is no improvement over the next 6 weeks, we will be looking to send a second letter which will be to invite you for a school attendance panel meeting to look at how we can work together to improve your child's attendance.

Good attendance is very important so that students are given as much opportunity as possible to learn and to develop socially. When students are absent from school, they often find it difficult to catch up on the work they have missed and can feel unsettled.

If you have any worries about your child's attendance, or there are any factors you feel we need to be made aware of please contact school to discuss the matter further. We can signpost you to services in relation to Health and Social Care should these be needed.

Yours sincerely

XXX

APPENDIX 4: Amber concern letter - significant absence

Dear (PARENT/CARER NAME)

RE: AMBER ATTENDANCE CONCERN: (PUPIL NAME)

In line with our attendance policy, I am writing to inform you that your child's attendance has become a concern. We aim for pupil's attendance to be above 95%. If a pupils attendance drops below 90%, we work together to find solutions to improve attendance. Your child's current attendance is XXX%. This means that they have missed XXX days out of a possible XXX.

We carry out regular attendance meetings to identify if any support or intervention is needed. We look at pupil's patterns of absence to assess if there is a concern and use the following colour code to provide the right support and response:

- Irregular attendance with no pattern.
- > Significant absence which could be a block absence and/or irregular absence.
- Suspected/confirmed holiday during term time.
- > Significant absence due to an identified medical need.
- Persistent absence that is not due to an identified medical need.

We have coded your child as an AMBER concern. If there is no improvement over the next 6 weeks, we will be looking to send a second letter which will be to invite you for a school attendance panel meeting to look at how we can work together to improve your child's attendance.

Good attendance is very important so that students are given as much opportunity as possible to learn and to develop socially. When students are absent from school, they often find it difficult to catch up on the work they have missed and can feel unsettled.

If you have any worries about your child's attendance, or there are any factors you feel we need to be made aware of please contact school to discuss the matter further. We can signpost you to services in relation to Health and Social Care should these be needed.

Yours sincerely

XXX

Dear (PARENT/CARER NAME)

RE: PURPLE ATTENDANCE CONCERN: (PUPIL NAME)

In line with our attendance policy, I am writing to inform you that your child's attendance has become a concern. We aim for pupil's attendance to be above 95%. If a pupils attendance drops below 90%, we work together to find solutions to improve attendance. Your child's current attendance is XXX%. This means that they have missed XXX days out of a possible XXX.

We carry out regular attendance meetings to identify if any support or intervention is needed. We look at pupil's patterns of absence to assess if there is a concern and use the following colour code to provide the right support and response:

- Irregular attendance with no pattern.
- Significant absence which could be a block absence and/or irregular absence.
- > Suspected/confirmed holiday during term time.
- > Significant absence due to an identified medical need.
- Persistent absence that is not due to an identified medical need.

We have coded your child as a **PURPLE** concern.

We believe that your child has been absent from school because of a holiday during term time. The government and local authority are very clear that pupils should not be taking holidays when they should be in school. Previously we had more flexibility to allow identified pupils with exceptional holiday experiences during term time however this is no longer the case and therefore we must follow the 'Holiday during term time' guidance which could include us informing the local authority if we suspect or have evidence that a holiday has been taken during term time. Please contact XXX for a further discussion about this absence.

Yours sincerely

XXX

APPENDIX 6: Blue concern letter - Medical reason

Dear (PARENT/CARER NAME)

RE: BLUE ATTENDANCE CONCERN: (PUPIL NAME)

In line with our attendance policy, I am writing to inform you that your child's attendance has become a concern. We aim for pupil's attendance to be above 95%. If a pupils attendance drops below 90%, we work together to find solutions to improve attendance. Your child's current attendance is XXX%. This means that they have missed XXX days out of a possible XXX.

We carry out regular attendance meetings to identify if any support or intervention is needed. We look at pupil's patterns of absence to assess if there is a concern and use the following colour code to provide the right support and response:

- Irregular attendance with no pattern.
- > Significant absence which could be a block absence and/or irregular absence.
- Suspected/confirmed holiday during term time.
- > Significant absence due to an identified medical need.
- Persistent absence that is not due to an identified medical need.

We have coded your child as a **BLUE** concern. We recognise that your child's health needs are the primary reason for lower attendance. We ask that you continue to work with us to ensure that your child accesses learning, this could include remote learning or home learning when they can't be in school.

In addition, we ask that you work with health professionals where possible to request appointments at the beginning or end of the day so that your child doesn't miss a whole day of learning. We know this isn't always within your control but ask that you remind health professionals about the importance of your child attending school. If you feel that child would benefit from a temporary reduced timetable or an adapted curriculum that could be delivered remotely please let us know.

Please ensure that health appointment letters are shared with us for our records. If you need any further support, please contact us and we will do our best to support you and your child.

Yours sincerely

 $\chi \chi \chi$

APPENDIX 7: Early Intervention – Attendance Concern

Attendance Concern

Dear [Parent/Carer's Name],

Name of Child: [child's full legal name] D.O.B:

Current Attendance: % Number of missed days:

I hope this letter finds you well. I am writing to inform you that we have noticed a recent decline in [Child's Name]'s school attendance. While we fully appreciate that children can be unwell at times, regular attendance is essential to support their learning, development, and overall progress.

As of [insert date], [Child's Name] has attended school for [insert number] out of a possible [insert total number] sessions. This gives an attendance rate of [insert percentage] and equates to [insert number] days missed so far, this academic year.

Although this level of absence does not currently meet the threshold for formal intervention, we are keen to work with you to prevent any further decline. We understand that some absences are unavoidable, and if there are any ongoing concerns or circumstances affecting your child's attendance, please let us know so we can support you appropriately.

Delete this section if you are requesting medical evidence using the letter template below (Letter 2) or its not applicable:

If your child is absent due to illness, and especially if this becomes more frequent, we kindly ask that you provide appropriate medical evidence to support the absence. This does not need to be a doctor's note, as we are aware some surgeries may charge for this. Acceptable forms of evidence can include:

- An appointment confirmation (text message, email, or letter)
- A copy of a prescription or medication label with child's name on
- Hospital/Medical letters
- A screenshot/print out of your child's patient summary from: https://www.nhs.uk/nhs-services/gps/view-your-gp-health-record/

Without appropriate medical evidence we will no longer be able to authorise absences.

How to provide evidence

Please send copies of any documents to [email or postal address] or hand them in to the school reception as soon as possible. If you cannot get formal medical evidence, please contact us so we can discuss alternative ways to confirm and support your child's needs.

Thank you for your continued support in helping us prioritise your child's education. We will continue to monitor [Child's Name] attendance and hope to see an improvement by [insert date].

More information and can also be found here on:

Working together to improve school attendance (applies from 19 August 2024)

If you have any questions or would like to discuss this further, please don't hesitate to contact [Designated Staff Member] on [Phone Number] or [Email Address].

Yours sincerely,

APPENDIX 8: Notice to improve letter

Dear [Parent/Carer name],

Name of Child: [child's full legal name] D.O.B:

Current Attendance: %

Current Unauthorised:%

Good attendance is vital for your child's learning, wellbeing, and development. We are writing to inform you that attendance for **[CHILD'S NAME]**, a registered pupil at [School Name], remains below an acceptable level.

Despite considerable efforts by the school to support improved attendance, including the following strategies:

- Daily phone calls to discuss absence and offer advice outline dates
- Home visits for safeguarding and engagement outline dates
- Letters and emails to inform and encourage attendance- outline dates letters sent
- Request for medical evidence to support your child in school outline dates
- Attendance meetings with Attendance Contract- outline dates
- Referral to services such as Early Help- outline dates
- Reasonable adjustments to support barriers to attending or medical needs outline dates
- Involvement of pastoral, SEND, or safeguarding staff outline dates

[Also include if support was declined or delete if not applicable]

During the period from [INSERT START DATE] to [INSERT END DATE], your child's attendance is [INSERT %] which is has resulted in [INSERT NUMBER OF DAYS] missed. This is a serious concern. Please see the attached attendance certificate.

You are now given a final review period of [INSERT 3-6 WEEKS] (from [START DATE] to [END DATE] – KEEP IN RED) to show sustained improvement. Any further unauthorised absences in this period may result in legal action.

Targets for attendance improvement should include: [INSERT TARGETS OF YOUR CHOOSING]

(examples)

- To attend school every day and arrive on time.
- Attend all lessons throughout the school day.
- To effectively engage with support offered.
- Provide medical evidence of any absences (This may take the form of prescription labels, appointment letters/text/emails, letter from GP, Hospitals etc.)

Failure to improve may lead to a Penalty Notice or Prosecution.

A Penalty Notice can be issued for persistent absence. **Section 7 of the Education Act 1996** places a duty upon parents to ensure that their child receives efficient full-time education either by regular attendance at school or otherwise. Where a child is a registered pupil at a school and the parent fails to ensure that child's regularly attends school, the parent is liable to be prosecuted for a criminal offence under **Section 444 of the Education Act**. In cases where this duty is not being fulfilled **Section 444B** of the same Act empowers the Local Authority to issue a Penalty Notice or a Prosecution.

_				
Pena	It\/	N	10ti	\sim
гъна	LLV	1 1	UUL	ᇈ

First Notice in a **3-year period**: Issued to each parent.

Charged at £80 if paid within 21 days.

£160 if paid within 28 days.

Further fines through the courts if not paid

Second Notice in a **3-year period**: Issued to each parent.

Charged at a flat rate of £160 if paid within

28 days.

As above

Third Notice in a **3-year period**: Alternative action should be taken, for

example prosecution or other attendance

legal interventions.

Fines per parent are capped at two within

any three-year period. If a parent is prosecuted for their child's non-

attendance, they could face a magistrates court appearance, and a fine of up to £2,500 and/or prison. If prosecuted and found guilty the parent would have a criminal record and offence recorded on their DBS Certificate, which can affect

future situations (such as job

applications) which require a criminal

record to be declared.

Being present in a public place during an exclusion

A penalty notice can also be issued for being present in a public place when excluded. **Section 103 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006** makes it a duty for parents in relation to pupils subject to a fixed period or permanent exclusion to ensure that their child is not present in a public place during school hours, without reasonable justification, during the first five days of any such exclusion. If a child is present in a public place during the first five days of an exclusion during school hours the parent may be guilty of an offence for which they can be prosecuted by the LA before a magistrates' court or issued with a Penalty Notice for £80.00 or £160.00.

We urge you to contact the school for support or to discuss this letter, please contact:

[Staff Contact Name], [Team/Role] [School Contact Details]

APPENDIX 9: Medical information sharing consent letter

Dear (Parent/Carer)

RE: Request for medical information sharing consent.

(NAME OF SCHOOL) has ongoing concerns about (PUPIL NAME) school attendance and would like to ask your family doctor / medical practitioners whether the record of school attendance is felt to be consistent with your child's known medical condition(s). We would like to work with you to get evidence to support the reason for your child's attendance concerns.

Please confirm below that you give consent for school to contact your child's (NAME PROFESSIONAL E.G. DOCTOR, CONSULTANT, NURSE). We ask that you complete the information in the table below and return to school.

Your sincerely		
XXX		
Head teacher		
 Lagree to school contacting my c	hild's doctor / consultant / nurse et	c as outlined below
ragice to selloct contacting my c	inta 3 doctor / consultant / narse ct	o. as outtimed below.
Print name:	(Parent/ Guardian)	Date:
Signature:	(Parent/ Guardian)	
		nditions which may prevent this pupil eet medical needs to ensure they have
Child's Name		
Address		
Name and address of doctor		
Name of consultant/ department (If applicable)		
Contact details of any additional professionals involved in your child's medical care.		

APPENDIX 10: School attendance panel

Name of pupil							
Date of Birth:							
Class / Year:							
Medical Evidence Red	quired?						
Overall attendance %)						
Authorised %							
Unauthorised %							
Lateness %							
Date of Meeting	Vei	nue	Panel N	1embers	Attended Parent /Ca	_	Attended by pupil?
	Strengths				Cha	allenges	8
Poss	sible optior	ıs		Barri	ers to consid	er for po	ossible options
Option 1:							
Option 2:							
Option 3:							
			School Ac	tion Plan			
Key actions		By who	m	В	y when		Success criteria
Date of review		Time of review		review		Ven	ue for review
Signed by	Writt	en name		Si	gnature		Date
Pupil (if applicable)							
Parent/Carer							
Attendance officer							
Headteacher							

APPENDIX 11 - SPECIALIST GRADUATED APPROACH TO IMPROVING ATTENDANCE

Pupil Name:	Date attendance concern raised :
Attendance officer:	_ SEND caseworker:
Other professionals involved:	

Other prof	essiona	ls invo	lved:
------------	---------	---------	-------

Professional full name	Professional role	Email address	Phone contacts

Highlight in red the primary barrier and yellow other barriers in column 1. For each barrier identified highlight in green any actions taken (with dates)

Barriers to	Stage 1	Stage 2	Stage 3	Stage 4
Distance Refusal (not anxiety related)	Consider change of transport. Discuss personal budget with parents to transport pupil. Complete pupil not attending regularly survey. Complete pupil not attending regularly survey. Send letter to parent	Emergency annual review with inclusion and attendance team. Request loan transport. Work with other schools within the trust to look at local support from staff. School Attendance panel meeting (appendix 10) Staff member collection	Blended packages Consider reduced timetable for late start, early finish. Liaise with social worker regarding visits model Blended curriculums offer Reduced timetables Loan transport Bespoke timetable Emergency annual reviews	Referral to SCLP Liaise with other settings (swap)/ local authorities. 2 nd Emergency annual review requesting change of placement. Discuss elective home education. Fixed penalty notice. Education supervision order (ESO)
Disguised compliance	Ask for appointment cards/text/screen shot. Tracking medical appointments/offer of support	School Attendance panel meeting (appendix 10)	Letter to safeguarding leads at GP using appendix 9.	Fixed penalty notice. Education supervision order (ESO) Refer to the education progress co-ordinators.
Complex family circumstances	Identify barriers and offer point of contact. Solution circle.	 Consider family conference to work towards solutions. School Attendance panel meeting (appendix 10) 	Escalate to social care and SEND caseworker	Liaise with IRO overseeing specific cases.
Emotional based school anxiety	Identify if EBSA is a suitable pathway. Liaise with SEND caseworker	Hold emergency annual review inviting someone from LA attendance team.	 Launch EBSA process. Liaise with health to confirm anxiety using appendix 9 letter. 	2 nd Emergency annual review Discuss elective home education.
Mental health needs	Refer to healthy minds Create risk assessment if needed. Liaise with SEND caseworker	Refer to CAMH's Liaise with health to confirm anxiety using appendix 9 letter.	Emergency annual review. Liaise with other agencies if no progress.	Request pupil be added to dynamic risk register for access to A&E vulnerable team.
Significant physical health needs	Risk assess and ensure all medical documentations are up to date with care plans.	Liaise with health to confirm diagnosis using appendix 9 letter.	Emergency annual review. Consider reduced timetable. Liaise with LA Clinical designated officer to offer advice and review EHCP	 Request medical support panel. Request pupil be added to dynamic risk register for access to A&E vulnerable team.
Palliative care	Emergency annual review Create child and family care plan. Create end of life plan.	 Liaise with LA Clinical designated officer to offer advice and review EHCP 	Request medical support panel.	 Consider elective home education options.
Complex behaviours	Request loan transport. Agree a parent/school plan. Early help referral or LD social care if behaviours at home too.	 Consider reduced timetables and alternative provision packages. Referral to LD CAMHs. Futures for me referral if appropriate. 	Emergency annual review. Referral to SCLP Request additional resource request for sensory OT/1:1 funding if applicable.	Request full reassessment if needed. Request pupil be added to dynamic risk register for access to A&E vulnerable team.
Bail conditions if related to not being with young people under 16.	Risk assessment Virtual learning Home visits Liaise with other professionals/police	Early help referralFutures for me referral	Contact vulnerable team within police Consider alternative provision.	Post 16 settings local to the pupil – 1:1 funding for adult to go to setting.

APPENDIX 12: PUPIL NOT ATTENDING AT ALL REFERAL FORM



Pupils Not Attending At All (PNAA)

referral form

Name of staff completing form	
Name of school	
Date form completed	
Name of child	
DOB	
Year group	
Home postcode	
Caseworker	
% attendance 2023 – 2024	
Date last seen by school	
Professionals involved (include any recently involved but now closed and when)	
Date last seen by other professionals (if so what professional)	
Primary reason for non-attendance	
Any additional context e.g. home circumstances	
Any barriers to completing home visits?	
Actions taken including dates:	

APPENDIX 13: How to Refer to the Medical Support Panel (Lincolnshire)

Lincolnshire's Medical Support Panel (MSP) is a multi-agency panel that considers the needs of pupils in order to arrive at a decision about how 'suitable education' might be provided, in accordance with the Local Authority's Section 19 duty.

Referrals to MSP are submitted by a pupil's school. The MSP is evidence based and will consider pupil's needs holistically. MSP takes place fortnightly during term time and considers the referral paperwork and supporting evidence that has been submitted. The panel consists of representation across attendance, inclusion, mental health, early help and Pilgrim Hospital School.

Where, despite school robustly following the steps within the EBSA pathway, there continues to be a barrier to attending school a referral to the MSP may be appropriate. The MSP outcome will be to advise regarding what further steps, strategies and support school can and should be robustly implementing to ensure continued access to suitable education. One of the further steps may be access to a short-term period of intervention at Pilgrim Hospital School. This would be a dual placement and focussed on working with the pupil's school to support the pupil's timely transition back to their school.

A referral to MSP requires school to complete the referral form. Please see <u>Lincolnshire's medical</u> <u>needs policy</u> for full details around referring to MSP and also how we will meet our statutory duty.

To ensure the MSP has all the relevant information to enable them to make fully informed decisions, when completing the referral form it is important to:

- complete all sections fully to ensure the panel have all the information to enable robust decision making to occur and identification of next steps. Do not write 'see attached document' in boxes. The boxes are often summaries and as such should be completed.
- complete the chronology. It is key. It gives the panel a clear overview of the child or young person's journey with all key occurrences.
- submit with all relevant documents. Remember decision making is evidence based.
- ensure all submitted documents are relevant and pertinent to the referral.
- clearly indicate if the referral is medical or EBSA.
- provide the name of the key link contact person for all communication with the school.
- ensure that any medical evidence is up to date, related to the current situation, fully relevant to
 the referral and pertinent to why the pupil is unable to attend school. For example; copies of
 hospital or doctor appointment letters do not provide evidence as to why a child or young person
 is unable to attend school. The detail of when medical appointments took place and were
 attended can be included as detail in the Chronology.

Supporting documents need to be submitted with a referral to enable the panel to make fully informed decisions:

- attendance record
- medical evidence
- chronology
- healthcare plan (where applicable)
- Education, Health and Care (EHC) plan (where applicable)
- VSEND (where applicable)
- risk assessment (where applicable)
- copy of reduced timetable (where applicable)
- copy of most recent EHA,TAC,ESCO,CIN and CP plan (where applicable)
- EBSA pathway documentation: each stage of the pathway that have been completed, as per the referral form

APPENDIX 14: SAFE AND WELL CHECK RISK ASSESSMENT:

Name of pupil:	Address:	Distance from	School name:
		school:	

	None	Low	Medium	High
Risk to staff	No known risk to	Risk of verbal	Suspected	Risk of harm
	staff	volatility	aggressive	
			behaviours	
Risk to pupils	No known risk to	Risk of emotional	Risk of	Risk of harm
	pupil	with drawl	absconding or	
			injury to self	
Risk to family	No known risk to	Risk of verbal	Risk of significant	Risk of harm
members	family members	conflict in the	conflict	
		home		

Specific hazards	Risk to visitor	Risk to others	Mitigation

In the event that school deem the risk to self or others to be too significant, they should
record below in detail their reasons for this. This information should be passed to the local
authority (and where necessary social care/police)

APPENDIX 15: Letter regarding Flexible timetable

Dear

Re: Flexible Timetable Agreement for [Child's Full Name]

Following our recent discussions, I am writing to confirm that we have agreed a flexible timetable arrangement for [Child's full name], beginning on [start date].

This arrangement has been put in place to support [Child's first name]'s individual needs and ensure that [he/she/they] can continue to engage positively with learning while maintaining wellbeing.

As agreed, [Child's first name] will attend the following provision each week: [Insert details of what provision they will access – e.g., Monday to Thursday in school and Friday Alternative provision]

During the times when [Child's first name] is not in school, it is the parents' responsibility to ensure that [he/she/they] is engaged in appropriate educational or wellbeing activities at home or elsewhere.

This flexible timetable will be reviewed regularly, with the first review scheduled for [date of review meeting], to ensure that it continues to meet [Child's first name]'s needs and that progress is being made. Adjustments may be made as required following discussion between home and school.

Please note that this arrangement is agreed on the understanding that:

- [Child's first name]'s attendance during agreed school hours remains consistent;
- Home-school communication is maintained; and
- The arrangement remains in [Child's first name]'s best interests educationally and developmentally.

We appreciate your cooperation and commitment in working with us to support [Child's first name]'s ongoing learning and wellbeing.

Yours sincerely,

APPENDIX 16: Letter regarding Reduced timetable

Dear

Re: Reduced Timetable Agreement for [Child's Full Name]

Following our recent meeting on [date of meeting], I am writing to confirm that we have agreed a reduced timetable for [Child's full name], which will begin on [start date].

This arrangement has been put in place to support [Child's first name]'s individual needs and to help [him/her/them] successfully reintegrate into full-time education. It is intended as a short-term measure and will be regularly reviewed.

Agreed Timetable

[Child's first name] will attend school on the following days and times: [Insert agreed schedule – e.g., Monday to Thursday, 9:00am–12:30pm]

During the time when [Child's first name] is not in school, parents/carers are responsible for [his/her/their] supervision, welfare, and engagement in appropriate home learning or wellbeing activities.

Review and Safeguarding

This arrangement will be reviewed on [insert review date], or earlier if needed, to monitor progress and determine next steps. Our shared goal is to return [Child's first name] to a full-time timetable as soon as it is appropriate and in [his/her/their] best interests.

Please note:

- The reduced timetable is not a permanent arrangement.
- Attendance will be recorded in line with Department for Education (DfE) guidance.
- The school will continue to monitor [Child's first name]'s wellbeing and academic progress closely.

We appreciate your cooperation and support in working with us to help [Child's first name] make a positive and sustainable return to full-time learning. Please contact [designated staff member's name] if you have any questions or wish to discuss progress before the next review.

Yours sincerely,

APPENDIX 17: Letter regarding Flexi schooling

Dear parent/carer,

Re: Confirmation of Flexi-Schooling Arrangement for [Child's Full Name]

Thank you for meeting with me to discuss flexi-schooling arrangements for [Child's first name].

As discussed, under Section 7 of the Education Act 1996, parents are legally responsible for ensuring their child receives a suitable education, either:

- by regular attendance at school, or
- otherwise (which includes home education).

Th definition of flexi schooling is when a child is registered at a school but attends only part of the week, spending the remaining time being educated at home for specific reasons that support their child wellbeing.

I am writing to confirm our mutual agreement that [he/she/they] will be registered at [School Name] on a flexi-schooling basis from [start date].

As agreed, [Child's name] will attend school on the following days:

[Insert agreed school days, e.g., Monday to Wednesday each week], and will be educated at home on [e.g., Thursday and Friday].

[Child's name] will remain on the school roll and that attendance will be recorded in accordance with the flexi-schooling agreement. This arrangement is subject to regular review to ensure it continues to meet [Child's name]'s educational and welfare needs.

Please can you sign to confirm that you agree with this arrangement.

Yours sincerely,

[Your Name]

Application for Leave of Absence from School during term time

Dear Applicant,

All schools **by law** must follow the Department for Education's statutory guidance relating to school attendance. They must use the appropriate national attendance, G attendance code, and follow the criteria set out within the guidance. The statutory guidance states:

- A leave of absence must not be granted unless there are exceptional circumstances and must be requested in advance
- A leave of absence must be requested in advance by a parent who the pupil normally lives with
- Schools must judge **each application individually**, considering the specific facts and circumstances and relevant background context behind each request
- Where a leave of absence is granted, the school will determine the number of days a pupil can be absent from school
- A need or desire for a holiday or other absence for the purpose of leisure and recreation would not constitute an exceptional circumstance
- A school **cannot** grant a leave of absence retrospectively. If the parent did not apply in advance, the leave of absence should not be granted
- Where this guidance refers to a parent, the school and/or local authority will need to decide which adult(s) is most appropriate. Generally, parents include:
- All natural parents, whether they are married or not;
- All those who have parental responsibility
- Those who have day to day responsibility for the child

Please note all schools are expected to regularly inform parents about their child's attendance and absence.

Taking your child out of school during term time could be detrimental to their educational progress. If the absence is not authorised and the leave is taken, schools may refer to the Local Authority for legal action. Please find attached information regarding Penalty Notice Fines for School Attendance.



Helping Parents understand Penalty Notice Fines for School Attendance

From 19 August 2024, there is a National Framework for Penalty Notice Fines being issued for unauthorised absences recorded by schools

National Threshold

A single consistent national threshold for when a Penalty Notice must be considered by ALL schools in England, this is:

- 10 sessions (usually equivalent to 5 school days) of unauthorised absence within a rolling 10 school week period
- These sessions do not have to be consecutive and can be made up of a combination of any type of unauthorised absence
- For example, a 5-day unauthorised leave of absence would meet the national threshold
- The 10-school week period can span different terms or school years

Who may be fined?

- Penalty Notice Fines are issued to each parent who allows their child to be absent without authorisation from school
- <u>For example</u>, 3 siblings absent for unauthorised leave during term-time would result in each parent receiving 3 separate fines

First Offence

The first time a Penalty Notice is issued for unauthorised absence, the fine amount will be:

- £80 per parent, per child if paid within 21 days
- If **not paid within 21 days**, the fine will increase to £160 per parent, per child, payable between the 22nd and 28th day

Second Offence (within 3 years)

The second time a Penalty Notice is issued for unauthorised absence, a reduced rate is not available. The amount therefore will be:

• £160 per parent, per child – payable within 28 days

Third Offence and Any Further Offences (within 3 years)

The third time an offence is committed, a Penalty Notice WILL NOT be issued, and the case will be presented **straight to the Magistrate's Court**

- Prosecution can result in criminal records and fines of up to £2,500
- Cases found guilty in a Magistrates Court can show on the parent's future DBS certificate (Disclosure and Barring Service) due to a <u>'failure to safeguard a child's</u> <u>education'</u>

Application for Leave of Absence from School during term time

Dear Headteacher,

I would like to request permission for leave of absence for my child, a pupil registered at your school for the reasons detailed below (further information can be attached if required).

_						
Pu	ni	ľs	fu	ш	na	me

Year Group Class / Registration Pupil's full address and postcode First date of absence Last date of absence Date of return to school Number of school days absent Please be aware, as per our school's attendance policy and Lincolnshire County Council's published Code of Conduct relating to school attendance, that the law requires parents to seek permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above) Signature					
Pupil's full address and postcode First date of absence Last date of absence Date of return to school Number of school days absent Please be aware, as per our school's attendance policy and Lincolnshire County Council's published Code of Conduct relating to school attendance, that the law requires parents to seek permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	Year Group				
First date of absence Last date of absence Date of return to school Number of school days absent Please be aware, as per our school's attendance policy and Lincolnshire County Council's published Code of Conduct relating to school attendance, that the law requires parents to seek permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	Class / Registration				
First date of absence Last date of absence Date of return to school Number of school days absent Please be aware, as per our school's attendance policy and Lincolnshire County Council's published Code of Conduct relating to school attendance, that the law requires parents to seek permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	Pupil's full address and				
Last date of absence Date of return to school Number of school days absent Please be aware, as per our school's attendance policy and Lincolnshire County Council's published Code of Conduct relating to school attendance, that the law requires parents to seek permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	postcode				
Last date of absence Date of return to school Number of school days absent Please be aware, as per our school's attendance policy and Lincolnshire County Council's published Code of Conduct relating to school attendance, that the law requires parents to seek permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Last date of absence Date of return to school Number of school days absent Please be aware, as per our school's attendance policy and Lincolnshire County Council's published Code of Conduct relating to school attendance, that the law requires parents to seek permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Date of return to school Number of school days absent Please be aware, as per our school's attendance policy and Lincolnshire County Council's published Code of Conduct relating to school attendance, that the law requires parents to seek permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupilt's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	First date of absence				
Please be aware, as per our school's attendance policy and Lincolnshire County Council's published Code of Conduct relating to school attendance, that the law requires parents to seek permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	Last date of absence				
Please be aware, as per our school's attendance policy and Lincolnshire County Council's published Code of Conduct relating to school attendance, that the law requires parents to seek permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupit's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupit normally lives with) Retationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	Date of return to school				
Please be aware, as per our school's attendance policy and Lincolnshire County Council's published Code of Conduct relating to school attendance, that the law requires parents to seek permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	Number of school days				
published Code of Conduct relating to school attendance, that the law requires parents to seek permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	absent				
published Code of Conduct relating to school attendance, that the law requires parents to seek permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
permission from the head teacher to take their child out of school during term time. The law states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	_				
states permission can only be granted if: 1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	-				
1. An application has been made in advance by the parent the child normally lives with; and 2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	1 -				
2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	states <u>permission can only be</u>	e granted if:			
2. There are exceptional circumstances. Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Please also note that, if on the rare occasion circumstances are deemed exceptional by the head teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	2. There are exceptional	circumstances.			
teacher, the duration your child is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by the head teacher. Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	Diagonal and materials if a site				
Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Reason for request including why you believe your circumstances to be exceptional (Further details & evidence may be attached to this form) If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	_	ld is permitted to be away from school may only be determined by			
If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	the head teacher.				
If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
If you have a child/ren at another school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	(Further details & evidence ma	y be attached to this form)			
Attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Attend below Pupil's name, name of school: Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	If you have a child/ren at anot	her school/s, please detail their name/s and which school/s they			
Full name of person making request (note requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)					
requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	attend below				
requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)		ool:			
requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)		ool:			
requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)		ool:			
requests must be made by a parent who the pupil normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)		ool:			
normally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	Pupil's name, name of sch				
Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	Pupil's name, name of sch	equest (note			
Full address and postcode (if different from child's above)	Full name of person making requests must be made by a pa	equest (note			
child's above)	Full name of person making requests must be made by a panormally lives with)	equest (note			
	Full name of person making requests must be made by a panormally lives with) Relationship to child	equest (note arent who the pupil			
Signature	Full name of person making requests must be made by a panormally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if	equest (note arent who the pupil			
Signature	Full name of person making requests must be made by a panormally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if	equest (note arent who the pupil			
	Full name of person making requests must be made by a panormally lives with) Relationship to child Full address and postcode (if child's above)	equest (note arent who the pupil			

Date				
		from School during term time mpleted by Headteacher		
<u>Dear</u>		e, forename, and surname)		
Copy sent to	unsert parent titte	e, forename, and surname)		
Re: Application for Leave of Absenc	e from School du	uring term time		
Date of response from school				
Date application received by school				
Pupil's full name				
Pupil's Date of Birth				
Year Group, Class / Registration				
Pupil's full address and postcode				
Tuple state address and postcode				
Pupil's percentage attendance year	ar to date			
Number of sessions absent this ac	cademic year			
(total)				
Number of which are authorised				
Number of which are unauthorised	d			
Has this pupil had any previously recorded unauthorised leave of absence?				
Was a Penalty Notice Fine request	Was a Penalty Notice Fine requested as a result?			
Are you aware of any Penalty Notice				
the parent or parents may have pro				
received for this pupil and/or a sibling/child for				
whom they hold parental/day to day care and				
responsibility?				
School response to parent/s reque	est for leave of al	osence		
Number of requested sessions au	thorised			
Number of requested sessions un	authorised			
Date pupil required to return to sc	hool			
Headteacher Signature				
Headteacher Name				
Date				

Tell me about any concerns that you have about school – subjects, friendships,

Remember depending on the response to ask

In which subjects do you feel you might need

teachers?

extra help to catch up?

Pupil Return to School Conversation

Date				
Name of person completing		 		<u></u>
form				
Relationship with pupil				
Pupil Name				
Pupil Date of birth				
Pupil Year Group & Class				
Wellbeing Tutor				
Why were you absent from school	?			
How are you at the moment? Do y	ou need			
any support following your absence?				
How are we going to catch up the	missed			
learning together?				
Remember depending on the resp	onse to			
explore further with open question				
bottom of form for definition of ope	e n			
questions)				
What are some things that have be	een going			
well for you at school lately?	7011 801118			
What do you like most about school?				
What is the best thing about coming				
school?	.6			
You may wish to use a combinatio	n of the			
questions above depending on the				
pupil				

What do you enjoy doing when you're not at school?	
What are some things that have been going well at home lately?	
Consider asking the pupil if they have any	
positive experiences from home they may	
want to share	
Is there anything that you are struggling with	
or worried about? And is there anything that	
school can do to help you?	
Remember depending on the response to ask	
why?	

Additional information

Remember depending on the response to ask why? Remain professionally curious and be
mindful of your duty of care and your right to ask questions for the wellbeing of the child.

Save this document in the Attendance Folder, PA Casework, Pupil NAME

Copies to be circulated with:

- Attendance Team
- Identified Trusted Adults
- Senior Attendance Champion and Attendance Officer
- SENCO (Special Educational Needs Coordinators) & DSLs
- Any agencies supporting the family

N.B. An open question is one that cannot be answered with a simple "yes" or "no." Instead, it requires a more detailed response, often encouraging the respondent to elaborate on their thoughts, feelings, or experiences. Open questions typically begin with "how," "why," or "what."